
Page 1 BOC/STAFF/09/15/2011

STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING, ROOM 113
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2011

8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Deb Schorr, Chair
Bernie Heier, Vice Chair
Larry Hudkins
Brent Smoyer
Jane Raybould

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Angela Zocholl, County Clerk’s Office

The Chair opened the meeting at 8:31 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 8,
2011 STAFF MEETING

MOTION: Heier moved and Smoyer seconded approval of the minutes of the
September 8, 2011 Staff Meeting.  Raybould, Heier, Schorr, Smoyer and
Hudkins voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.   

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Citizen Recognition
B. Give the Chair and Vice Chair Authorization to Meet with the County

Engineer to Discuss the County Maintenance Shop with the Support of
Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Heier seconded approval of the additions to the
agenda.  Raybould, Heier, Schorr, Smoyer and Hudkins voted aye. 
Motion carried 5-0. 



Page 2 BOC/STAFF/09/15/2011

 3 LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES - Gordon Kissel and Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S
Associates (Legislative Consultants)

After discussion with the legislative consultants, the Board established the following
legislative priorities and proposals:

• Reduce County Employee Pension Match for New Employees
• Extend 2011 Legislative Bill (LB) 465 to Include General Assistance

(GA)
• Increase State Funding and Fees for Sex Offender Treatment and

Tracking
• Provide a Definition and Oversight Responsibility for Staff Secure

Juvenile Detention Facilities 
• Review All County Fees and Raise Where Appropriate

Other Priorities Identified:

• Amend State Statute §29-2022 to Give Judges Discretion on Jury
Sequestration

• Authorize Deduction of Court Costs & Fines From Cash Bonds Posted
by Defendants in Criminal Cases

• Allow Jurors to Waive Jury Fees
• Restore the 2.5% Cut in Medicaid Funding for Behavior Health and

Maintain Adequate Funding for Behavioral Health Regions

There was also consensus to schedule discussion of payday lending legislation with Kit
Boesch, Human Services Administrator. 

 4 HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN DESIGN AND RATE STRUCTURE - Kim
Lobato, Senior Vice President for Health and Benefits, AON Risk
Solutions; Tracy Krause, Account Executive, AON Risk Solutions; Bill
Kostner, City Risk Manager; Paula Lueders, Benefits Specialist 

Kim Lobato, Senior Vice President for Health and Benefits, AON Risk Solutions,
presented an analysis of the County’s medical and dental plan and rate structure
(Exhibit A).  He said a rate increase of 11.1% is projected for the medical plan, based
on claims experience (see Page 3).  Lobato noted the increase is slightly higher than
the trend and said the Board could “buy down” the increase with a subsidy from the
reserve fund.  The fund has a balance of $4,000,000 and it is calculated so that only
$700,000 is needed to cover incurred but not reported (IBNR) expenses.  



Page 3 BOC/STAFF/09/15/2011

Raybould said it is her understanding that the rate was based on a Request for
Proposals (RFP) that included the City and Lincoln Electric System (LES).  Lobato said
that is correct and said it decreased the County’s fixed costs (administrative charges
and stop-loss fees).

Schorr asked whether there has been an increase in large claims.  Lobato said he did
not bring the claims data with him but will follow-up and submit a summary.  Schorr
felt that would be helpful information.  Lobato noted the claims period is for the last
12 months and may include a few claims that were carried forward from Lancaster
Manor employees.  

Raybould noted the County conducts health screenings and asked how this compares
with trends.  Bill Kostner, City Risk Manager, said that is a separate program and that
data is not provided to the health carrier.

Raybould asked whether they plan to discuss deductible options.  Tracy Krause,
Account Executive, AON Risk Solutions, said there are no plan changes in the
projections.  Kostner said plan design changes would have to be negotiated with the
unions.   

Lobato said a 5.08% decrease is projected for the dental plan.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Smoyer seconded to: 1) Leave the dental premiums
at the current rate; and 2) “Buy down” the medical plan premium
increase to 5% with a subsidy from the reserve fund.  Hudkins, Smoyer,
Schorr, Heier and Raybould voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

14 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) 2011 Annual
Conference (December 14-16, 2011)

Informational only.

NOTE: The Board cancelled the December 15th Staff Meeting, due to attendance at the
conference. The Board will hold a Staff Meeting on December 13th, if necessary.

B. NACO Legislative Conference (October 13, 2011)

Informational only.



Page 4 BOC/STAFF/09/15/2011

C. Coast2Coast Rx Card Update

Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer, said there have been 1,200 gross
claims on the County’s new Coasxt2Coast Rx Card and 1,000 net paid through the
period of July-August, 2011.  She said the County’s National Association of County
Officials (NACo) Rx card is still active even though NACo was sent a letter of
termination.  Heier suggested a copy of the letter be sent to Chris Rodgers, NACo
Second Vice President.

 5 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE - Marvin Krout, Planning Director;
Sara Hartzell, Planner; Michael Cornelius, Chair, Planning Commission; 
Dick Esseks, Planning Commissioner

The following documents were disseminated (Exhibits B & C): 1) Staff recommended
changes to the July 8, 2011 Draft 2040 Lincoln-Lancaster County Comprehensive Plan
(LPlan 2040) that were adopted by the Planning Commission; and 2) The Planning
Commission’s recommended draft of LPlan 2040.

Marvin Krout, Planning Director, noted the Planning Commission was part of the LPlan
Advisory Committee (LPAC) that worked for over a year on drafting the plan.  The
Planning Commission also held workshops and public hearings on the LPlan.

Hudkins asked whether a minority report was issued or if it was always by consensus. 
Cornelius said it was always by consensus but all members were given an opportunity
to provide comment on the process and content of the plan.  Krout said several
members of LPAC responded with reports or recommendations and said that
information is currently available on the Planning Department’s website:
http://lincoln.ne.gov/city/plan/lplan2040/committee/Staff%20Response.pdf.  Schorr
noted Brett Baker had served as the County’s rural representative and asked whether
he expressed any specific concerns. Krout said Baker was interested in the South
Beltway and in the Salt Valley Greenway.  Sara Hartzell, Planner, said Baker also
expressed interest in the county trail system.

Hartzell gave an overview of the plan referring to current and proposed future land use
plan maps (see Exhibit B).

Heier asked whether the following language has been removed from the current draft:
Consider all proposal for new acreage development in undesignated areas at one time
as part of the Comprehensive Plan Annual Review (see Exhibit C, Page 7.13).  Nicole
Fleck-Tooze, Long-Range Planning Manager, appeared and said it is the current draft
but the Planning Department will prepare an amendment to strike that language. 
Hartzell said that language was struck from the County’s resolution during the 2009
annual update of the Plan but was inadvertently carried forward in the draft.



Page 5 BOC/STAFF/09/15/2011

Smoyer said he is concerned with how other highly productive agricultural land in the
third bullet point on Page 1.2. would be defined.  Dick Esseks, Planning Commissioner,
said he was thinking of farmland of statewide importance, which is defined as land
that is useful for high value products, when he proposed the language (Exhibit D).  He
has since learned there are few acres that meet that definition so the language isn’t
necessary.  Hartzell said the Planning Department can prepare a resolution to amend
that language.

In response to a question from Hudkins, Hartzell said the Planning Department looked
at what rural communities show as future land use and their zoning to try to make it
correspond with Lincoln’s.

Hudkins said he would like to see a comparison of minimum lot size requirements for
acreages to surrounding counties.

Heier said he believes the area between 148th Street and 162nd Street and between
Hooper Road and Highway 2 should be designated as commercial/industrial.  Krout
said that issue would involve the Village of Bennet, even if it is not technically within
its jurisdiction.  He suggested it be referred to the Planning Commission because it is
contrary to the principals of the Comprehensive Plan to direct commercial and
industrial development to the small towns and to Lincoln, where there is a full
complement of infrastructure and public services available.  Kerry Eagan, Chief
Administrative Officer, noted the Board had asked the Planning Department to contact
Bennet regarding that question.  Krout said Bennet decided it was not prepared to
serve the area north of Highway 2.  He said if the Board is proposing to change the
designation, the Village of Bennet and area property owners will need to be notified
and involved in that discussion.  

Smoyer asked whether the County Board has the authority to reduce the 20-acre
limitation on acreages to 5 or 10 acres.  Krout said that limitation is in the County’s
Zoning Regulations.  He said it would require numerous changes to the Comprehensive
Plan and suggested it would be more appropriate to ask the Planning Commission to
study the issue. 

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Heier seconded to schedule a public hearing on 
Tuesday, October 11, 2011 on the matter of changing the
Comprehensive Plan to designate the area north of the Village of Bennet
as commercial/industrial.  Raybould, Heier, Schorr, Smoyer and Hudkins
voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

There was consensus to schedule a Staff Meeting on September 20th to further discuss
the draft Comprehensive Plan.



Page 6 BOC/STAFF/09/15/2011

 6 PENDING AND POTENTIAL LITIGATION - Doug Cyr, Chief
Administrative Deputy County Attorney; Tom Fox, Deputy County
Attorney; Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager; Kari Wiegert, Risk
Management Specialist 

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Hudkins seconded to enter Executive Session at
10:10 a.m. for the purpose of protecting the public interest with regards
to pending and potential litigation. 

The Chair restated the motion for the record.

ROLL CALL: Hudkins, Smoyer, Schorr, Heier and Raybould voted aye.  Motion carried 
5-0.

Smoyer exited the meeting.  The Chair also exited the meeting and the Vice Chair
assumed direction of the meeting.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Raybould seconded to exit Executive Session at
10:55 a.m.  Hudkins, Raybould and Heier voted aye.  Schorr and Smoyer
were absent from voting.  Motion carried 3-0. 

 7 UNREPRESENTED CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES - Mark Koller, Personnel
Director; John Cripe, Classification and Compensation Manager; Tom Fox,
Deputy County Attorney

John Cripe, Classification and Compensation Manager, noted he had been asked to
present costs on each of the three areas where the Board was seeking changes: 1)
Post Employment Health Plan (PEHP) contributions; 2) Longevity system; and 3)
Health care contributions.  

PEHP Contributions

Cripe said the County’s cost for contributing to the PEHP for unrepresented, MSS
(appointed) and excluded employees is $242,450. 

The Chair returned to the meeting and assumed direction of the meeting.

Longevity System

Information regarding longevity rates for the three groups was presented (Exhibit E). 
Cripe said there are 65 employees with 5 years of service; 69 employees with 10 years
of service; 46 employees with 15 years of service; 44 employees with 20 years of
service; and 57 employees with 25 years of service.  The total cost of longevity pay,



Page 7 BOC/STAFF/09/15/2011

based on statistics from January, is $168,386 ($109,568 for unrepresented employees;
$42,929 for MSS employees; and $15,889 for excluded employees).  NOTE: Sheriff’s
deputies were excluded from the calculations.

Health Care Contributions

Cripe estimated the cost savings for increasing the unrepresented employees
contributions to health care as follows: $12,033 in single coverage; $32,888 in 2/4
party coverage; and $58,483 in family coverage.  Total savings for unrepresented
employees is $103,403.  There are corresponding savings for excluded and MSS
employees.  He projected the total savings for the changes at $165,689.66.  NOTE: 
The differences, on an annualized basis, are: 1) $114.60 for single coverage; 2)
$644.87 for 2/4 party coverage; and 3) $860.04 for family coverage. 

Cripe said the Board can choose to do whatever it wants with these employees, as
they are unrepresented.  He noted they have received less in salary increases than
employees represented by the American Federation of State, County & Municipal
Employees (AFSCME) over the last three years.  

Returning to Discussion of PEHP and the Longevity System

Heier asked whether the Board could substitute a pay increase for longevity pay. 
Cripe said the Board could redistribute the $168,386 to employees in this group but
there would be a change in equity, i.e., employees with less than 5 years of service
would receive an increase and employees at the maximum would receive less than
they currently receive.  He said one alternative would be to add a step to the pay plan. 
The Board could also freeze longevity pay which would limit future exposure.  

Heier read the following statement from Smoyer, “For the record, I want you to know
that I stand in favor of  ending longevity but letting unrepresented employees keep
their money like we discussed.”  

Cripe said a freeze is probably the most appropriate action.  Raybould said she would
prefer to freeze longevity pay and re-evaluate it at mid-year.   In response to a
question from Hudkins, Cripe said only two of the seven counties his department
surveyed offer longevity pay.  He said some have added steps to their wage system.  

A letter from Judith Lewis-Cairns, Administrative Aide, County Sheriff’s Office,
addressing the possible loss of longevity pay and other benefits was submitted into the
record (Exhibit F).  Hudkins noted the letter indicates the benefits have already been
accounted for the in Fiscal Year 2011-2012 budget.  Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal
Officer, appeared and said removal of PEHP contributions was built into the budget.  A 
reduction in longevity pay was not.  He added the Board will need to decide whether



Page 8 BOC/STAFF/09/15/2011

to eliminate PEHP contributions for the unrepresented employees without knowing
what will happen with AFSCME.  NOTE:  AFSCME has taken its labor dispute to the
Commission on Industrial Relations.  Schorr noted the Board has received numerous
letters, e-mails and phone calls from employees expressing their concern about the
loss of longevity pay.

MOTION: Heier moved and Raybould seconded to freeze longevity pay.  Raybould,
Heier, Schorr and Hudkins voted aye.  Smoyer was absent from voting. 
Motion carried 4-0.

Cripe said the Board still needs to take action on the Personnel Policy Board’s denial of
the Board’s request to delete Rule 17.18 of the Personnel Rules (Longevity) and
amend Rule 18.1 of the Personnel Rules (Compensation for Absence on Holidays),
preferably at a regular County Board of Commissioners Meeting.

 8 FLU SHOT UPDATE - Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager

Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager, requested authorization to distribute information
regarding flu shot clinics with employee paychecks (see Exhibit G).  She said there is
no cost to employees for the flu shots (a Wellness Program benefit).  In response to a
question from Hudkins, Eckley said flu shots for family members are not an option this
year.  Eckley was asked to correct the flyer to indicated that the on-site clinic at 2662
Cornhusker Highway is in a Super Saver store, not a Russ’s Market.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Citizen Recognition

Item was held.

 9 SOUTHWEST 40TH STREET UPDATE - Roger Figard, City Engineer;
Devin Biesecker, Project Manager

Devin Biesecker, Project Manager, gave an update on the Southwest 40th Street
Overpass Project (Exhibit H).  He noted the City is working on right-of-way acquisition. 
They are also waiting for the Burlington Northern/Santa Fe (BNSF) Railroad to approve
the latest draft of the railroad agreement.

Roger Figard, City Engineer, said they are not aware of any unresolved issues.

Biesecker said they must reach an agreement with BNSF before the Nebraska
Department of Roads (NDOR) will give the City a right-of-way certificate.  He said the
certificate is needed before the City can submit its final plans to NDOR to review. 



Page 9 BOC/STAFF/09/15/2011

The Chair exited the meeting and the Vice Chair assumed direction of the meeting.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Raybould seconded to initiate contact with the
Burlington Northern/Santa Fe (BNSF) Railroad officials in Kansas City and
invite them to meet with the Board to discuss the importance of
expediting the project.  Raybould, Heier and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr
and Smoyer were absent from vote.  Motion carried 3-0.

Biesecker said their goal is to have design work completed before right-of-way
purchase is completed and to get an early review by NDOR.  He said they would like to
have right-of-way acquisition completed by February, 2012.  Construction is estimated
to take 18-24 months.  

The Chair returned to the meeting and resumed direction of the meeting.

The Board asked Biesecker and Figard to provide updates to the West “A”
Neighborhood Association and the West “O” Business Association.

10 HICKMAN VIADUCT GRAND OPENING SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT -
Don Thomas, County Engineer; Ken Schroeder, County Surveyor; Virgil
Dearmont, Bridge Division Head; Brittany Behrens, Deputy County
Attorney

Don Thomas, County Engineer, expressed concerns regarding the event, i.e., the large
number projected to attend the event, lack of adequate parking and liability issues if
the event is held on the bridge.  Schorr suggested it would be better if the event were
held at the base of the bridge. Thomas suggested the event be held at the trail head
for the Hickman Linear Park Trail (see Exhibit I) or in the downtown area.  He also
requested flexibility regarding the ribbon cutting, noting they only have a target date
for when the contractor will release the bridge to the County.  Brittany Behrens,
Deputy County Attorney, said construction site control is the primary issue.  Raybould
suggested that Hickman postpone the event until there is a firm opening date. 
Thomas explained that people will start using the bridge as soon as the contractor
releases the bridge.  Use of concrete barriers was suggested as a way to prevent that
from happening.  Virgil Dearmont, Bridge Division Head, noted the Hickman Area
Community Foundation has requested two weeks notice so they can advertise the
event (see Exhibit J).  There was Board consensus to schedule further discussion with
representatives of the Foundation on the September 20th Staff Meeting agenda. 
Thomas agreed to visit with the contractor to see if he would allow the ribbon cutting
to take place on the end of the bridge on October 2nd.



Page 10 BOC/STAFF/09/15/2011

11 BLACK HILLS UTILITY 2009 TAX REFUND - Dennis Meyer, Budget
and Fiscal Officer; Terry Adams, Deputy County Treasurer

Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer, said the Nebraska Department of Revenue
has reached a settlement with Black Hills Energy on a decrease of their 2009 taxable
value.  The utility is owed a refund since they have already paid the 2009 taxes.  He
said the amount of the County’s refund is $59,488.04 and said the County Treasurer
will net the amount out of the County’s property tax collections.  Meyer said they are
also owed a refund for the 2010 tax year, estimating the amount of the refund at
$89,000.  It was noted political subdivisions are allowed to pay the funds back over
time if it creates a hardship.   

12 ACTION ITEMS

There were no action items.

13 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

14 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) 2011 Annual
Conference (December 14-16, 2011)

B. NACO Legislative Conference (October 13, 2011)
C. Coast2Coast Rx Card Update

Items A-C were moved forward on the agenda.

D. Correspondence Regarding North 95th Street and Holdrege Street
Intersection

Schorr said the Board received a letter from DaNay Kalkowski, attorney for the
developer of Waterford Estates, indicating they are in negotiations to acquire the
necessary easement (Exhibit K).  The letter indicated the developer does not believed
the final grading required within the easement area will hold up the opening of North
95th Street.  Raybould said she will contact Kalkowski and ask for a progress report on
the negotiations.  

E. Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Planning Committee Update

Eagan said they discussed how to provide for community input.



Page 11 BOC/STAFF/09/15/2011

Raybould said Dean Settle, CMHC Director, has invited Board members to attend the
meetings.  The next meeting will be held October 12th at 8:30 a.m. in Human Services’
Conference Room.

F. Claim for Review, Payment Voucher (PV) No. 325720 from Property
Management for $2,208 (Exceeds the $1,500 Threshold)

Copies of correspondence from Don Killeen, Property Manager, regarding the claim
were disseminated (Exhibit L).

MOTION: Heier moved and Hudkins seconded to handle the claim through the
regular claims process.  Hudkins, Schorr, Heier and Raybould voted aye. 
Smoyer was absent.  Motion carried 4-0.

G. Personnel Department Interlocal Agreement

Eagan said he will share information regarding the agreement individually with
Commissioners.

H. Health Management Associates (HMA) Meetings with Commissioners

Eagan said Health Management Associates (HMA), the consultant hired by the
Community Health Endowment (CHE) to study a broad integration of physical and
mental health services, would like to meet individually with each member of the Board. 
Raybould said she would be available to meet with them on September 23rd, from
12:00 to 1:30 p.m.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

B. Give the Chair and Vice Chair Authorization to Meet with the County
Engineer to Discuss the County Maintenance Shop with the Support of
Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer

Raybould said she has had several conversations with Don Thomas, County Engineer,
and he informed her he would be more comfortable working with the Chair and Vice
Chair in looking at costs.  She presented a fact sheet and list of questions she would
like to see presented. (Exhibit M).

15 PENDING

There were no pending items.



Page 12 BOC/STAFF/09/15/2011

16 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Information Services Policy Committee (ISPC) - Smoyer

Meeting was cancelled.

B. Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - Raybould

Raybould said they reviewed the capital improvement budget, noting some of the City
swimming pools need to be upgraded to be in compliance with Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) standards.

C. Monthly Meeting with Mayor - Heier, Smoyer

Heier said they discussed the Personnel Department interlocal agreement and a
Planning Commission vacancy.

D. Public Building Commission (PBC) - Raybould

Raybould said they discussed the art venue outside courtrooms in the Justice and Law
Enforcement Center, solar panels for the Police Station on 27th and Holdrege Street,
and bids for light-emitting diode (LED) lighting in the parking lot.

Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk, asked if the PBC could revisit the purchase of
additional tabletop microphones for Room 113.  She said she was informed that the
original request was denied due to cost.  Raybould agreed to follow up on the request. 

E. Board of Health - Schorr

No report.

17 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

There were no emergency items or other business.



Page 13 BOC/STAFF/09/15/2011

18 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Heier moved and Hudkins seconded to adjourn the meeting at 12:26
p.m.  Raybould, Heier, Schorr and Hudkins voted aye.  Smoyer was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

__________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk

NOTE: The minutes were produced by Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office, from the
audio recording.




























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































